
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA: 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER; PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

5. APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 27TH BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

6. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

7. FINANCIAL REPORTS- OCTOBER 2016 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION- LEGAL COUNSEL 192.660(2)(h)   
9. LEAVE BLANK 

10. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Call Recording Policy Update 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Oregon Department of Forestry Presentation on Current Forest Management Plan 

b. County of Linn v. State of Oregon and the State Forestry Department, 16CV07708 
 

c. Whistleblower Policy 

d. ODOT Agreement #31796 Northwest Oregon Transit Feasibility Study 

12. CORRESPONDENCE-  

13. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

14. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORT 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minute limit) 

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION-Executive Director Evaluation-ORS 192.660(2)(i) 

17. OTHER ITEMS 

 

 

 

Sunset Empire Transportation District 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
THURSDAY DECEMBER 8, 2016 

9:00 AM 
Astoria Transit Center, 900 Marine Drive Astoria, OR 



 

 

 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER- Chair Kathy Kleczek called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  
 

2. ROLL CALL: 
Present: Chair Kathy Kleczek, Vice Chair Paul Lewicki, Commissioner Kevin Widener, Commissioner Jim Servino, 
Secretary/Treasurer Carol Gearin, Commissioner Tracy MacDonald and Commissioner Lylla Gaebel.  
 

Staff Present: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, Executive Assistant Mary Parker, Finance Officer Al Hernandez, IS/Transit 
Center Manager John Layton, RideCare Manager Jason Jones, Operations Manager Scott Earls, Paratransit Supervisor 
Jennifer Geisler, Mobility Management Coordinator Shana Verley, Human Resources Tami Carlson and Transportation 
Options Specialist Shasia Fry.  

 
 

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA- Mary Parker requested that Correspondence be added and Chair Kleczek added the Executive 
Director Evaluation Process update.    
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT- None 
 

5. APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2016 MEETING MINUTES 
Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the September 2016 Board Minutes 
Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion- Commissioner Gearin noted Chair Kleczek’s comment was incomplete on page 5.  
Motion passed unanimously  

 
6. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS 

a. Commissioner Lewicki- No comment 
b. Commissioner Widener- No comment 
c. Commissioner MacDonald- No comment 
d. Commissioner Gearin- No Comment 
e. Commissioner Gaebel- Asked for clarification from Chair Kleczek that both she and Commissioner Widener are 

serving on the Senior and Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee and asked how they should share voting. 
Chair Kleczek confirmed the appointments and stressed the importance of the committee and that voting could be 
rotated. Commissioner Gaebel said if it became a problem they would work it out.    

f. Commissioner Servino- Commented that attending the Board Policy Committee meeting the day before had helped 
in his understanding of how the District operates.  

g. Commissioner Gaebel- Commented that she had read that Ridecare may begin recording phone calls and asked if the 
District had a policy on recording calls and how to protect and store these records under current guidelines including 
HIPPA requirements? Executive Director Hazen said he would look into this as it would not be a Board Policy.  

h. Chair Kleczek- Reminded everyone that there will not be a Board Meeting in November and instead there will be a 
combined November-December Board meeting held on December 8, 2016.  

 
7. FINANCIAL REPORTS- SEPTEMBER 2016 

Al confirmed that he had contacted the Astoria Downtown Historic District Association concerning our available 
parking space and will continue to let businesses in the area know the availability. He reported that the previous IT 
person had set up a lease with Microsoft so that they are responsible for providing service for the whole system. Al 
explained that the decline in CCO payments is due to a CCO review of applicants and finding that many applicants 
were not qualified. Commissioner Gearin complimented the drivers on the good job the busses did during the Cruise 
Ship season. Chair Kleczek asked if there was a policy that had a time limit for submitting bills to the District. Al 
did not think that there was a policy. Commissioner Gaebel suggested placing the policy on the invoices with a note 
that exceptions would be on a case by case basis.   

Commissioner Servino moved to approve the September 2016 Financial Report  
Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion- None 
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote 

 
8. OLD BUSINESS 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 27, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 

  2



 
a. BOARD GOAL SETTING SESSION- Executive Director Hazen said he would like to set up a Board Goal Setting 

Session in January. He has sent out a doodle poll to assist in setting the date. Executive Director Hazen has 
contacted Special Districts who will provide facilitators as part of their contracted services.   
 

b. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION PROCESS- Chair Kleczek reported that the Executive Director 
Evaluation Committee (EDEC) had met and determined that the Executive Director Evaluation Forms will be 
distributed to the Board and staff and once they are returned they will be processed. Then one or two of the EDEC 
will meet with the Executive Director in his office to administer the evaluation. An Executive Session will be added 
to the next Board meeting agenda for the discussion of potential compensation changes. Any compensation changes 
must be approved by the Board after coming out of Executive Session and during the regular Board meeting.  

 
Commissioner Lewicki moved to approve process of the Executive Director Evaluation and compensation 
administration process as stated 
Commissioner Gearin seconded the motion 
Discussion- Commissioner Servino asked for clarification on the process and motion 
Motion passed unanimously  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. ODOT AGREEMENT 31459 FOR 5339 GRANT AWARD FOR VEHICLE PURCHASE- Executive Director 
Hazen requested approval of the ODOT agreement 31459 for the purchase of 2 buses. The Grant is for $390,000 and 
our match is $58,500. 

Commissioner Gearin moved to approve ODOT agreement 31459 for the purchase of 2 buses 
Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion 
Discussion-Executive Director Hazen reported he is looking into being able into making one of the buses a 
low floor bus.  
Motion passed by unanimous aye vote of all Commissioners present 
 

b. APPOINT NEW MEMBER OF THE SENIOR AND DISABLED TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE-Shana Verley reported that the Senior and Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee had voted at 
their last meeting to recommend that the Board of Commissioners appoint Pamela Alegria to fill the vacant seat on 
the committee.  

Commissioner Gaebel moved to approve the appointment 
Commissioner Widener seconded the motion 
Discussion-None 
Motion passed unanimously  

 
c. SPECIAL DISTRICTS BOARD BEST PRACTICES- Mary explained that the focus for this year’s Special District 

Association of Oregon Board Best Practices requirements are based on the Oregon Government Ethics Law for 
Public Officials. Mary reviewed the application questions which when completed and submitted will earn the 
District discounts on their overall liability insurance premiums. The Board was required to receive and read the 
Oregon Government Ethics Law for Public Officials and answer a series of questions that will be submitted. 

 
d. RESOLUTION 2016-02 NUMBER CORRECTION-Mary explained that Resolution 2016-02 was numbered 

incorrectly and should have been Resolution 2016-05 and no content of the resolution needed to be changed.  
Chair Kleczek move to change Resolution 2016-02 to 2016-05 
Commissioner Macdonald seconded the motion 
Discussion-None 
Motion passed unanimously 

 

 
10. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen updated the Board on several items: The current status of 

the IT services contract which he has sent to Jeaneyse Snow. Columbia County still is looking for an Executive Director. 
Trimet is looking at SETD to be a part of a study for the new Hop Pass system. Ridership is up in general and specifically on 
the Connector. The Point Bus has added a stop at the Sunset Transit Center in Beaverton. The Transit Kiosk in Seaside still 
does not have Credit Card Service due to an existing contract that will expire in March. The Transcription service examples 
were reviewed and discussed and the purchase of a better recording system was discussed and recommended. Commissioner 
Lewicki suggested that there be a time code placed down the side of the transcription.   
  

11. Chair Kleczek presented Tami Carlson a certificate for her completion of Drug and Alcohol Program Management. 

  3



 
12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS- Reports submitted for September 2016: Operations- Scott Earls, Rider Reports- John 

Layton, Ride Assist- Jennifer Geisler, Mobility Management- Shana Verley, Transportation Options-Shasia Fry, Information 
Technology- John Layton, Marketing and Outreach- Mary Parker, RideCare- Jason Jones and Human Resources- Tami 
Carlson.     
 

13. CORROSPONDENCE-Mary passed around cards from Rae Goeforth’s daughter and from a Paratransit rider.  
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT-None  
 

15. OTHER ITEMS 
  

 
 
 
An audio recording of the Sunset Empire Transportation District’s October 2016 Board Meeting is available 
at:  www.ridethebus.org-Board of Commissioners- Monthly Meeting Minutes- October 27, 2016. 
 

 
 

Meeting was adjourned at 10:15 AM   Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 
 

________________________________________________       Date_____________________ 
Commissioner Carol Gearin, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Provide safe, reliable, relevant and sustainable transportation services to  

Clatsop County with professionalism, integrity and courtesy. 

  4

http://www.ridethebus.org/


NOTE on Reviewing Financials:4 Month = 33.33 % of Fiscal Year Budget*      
                              

Preliminary General Fund Profit and Loss  
 
The District’s General Fund Total YTD Income was $518,830 ($145,559 better than budget), 16.94% of annual 
budget and 150.54% of monthly budget.  YTD Total Materials  & Services  was $136,200 ($146,892 less than 
budget), 16.31% of annual budget and 65.92% of monthly budget.  Budgeted Other Expense  reflects the 
expected delivery of one bus in October for $95,000 which was the estimated cost.  The two new buses were 
delivered in September 2016.   
 
Revenue 

• 4000 Fares:  Revenues for the month reflect Cruise Ship Fares of  $7,841 in October 2016 vs $2,909 in 
October 2015. Fare Box revenues reflected an increase of about $1,700 in October  2016 compared to 
October 2015.  

• 4090 Donations/Commissions: Employee tips from Cruise ships 
• 4100 Contract Service-IGA:  Cannon Beach billed for October Monthly Service.    
• 4200 Property Tax: Reflects prior period tax revenues of $6,056 and current year $38,809. 
• 4272 Parking: One parking spot remains open, one person inquired by phone but never followed up. We 

have distributed a flyer to the businesses in the area to let them know there is a parking space available, 
we have  asked that a flyer be included in the Weekly Email Update to the Astoria-Warrenton Area 
Chamber of Commerce and placed a sign on parking spot #11.  I have also been given notice of two 
other spaces being vacated on December 1, 2016.  

• 4300 Interest: Effective October 1, 2016 the LGIP Rate increased to 1.03%.  The previous increase was 
in July 27, 2016 when LGIP increased their interest to .92% from (.875%). Fund savings are deposited 
into LGIP.  The period July to Oct is a slow revenue period thus we draw on LGIP.   This is October 
2016 interest. 

• 4310 Misc Income: SETD portion of the settlement of an Antitrust law suite field by the Oregon 
Department of Justice.  

• 5000 Grants: Reimbursement for the two new Buses received in September.  We had budgeted that the 
reimbursements would be received half in October and half in November 2016.    

 Expense   
• 6300 Payroll Expense: Over budget the result of making the pension contribution for the payroll of 

September 30 (last day of the month was Friday) in October 2016. 
• 7000 Provider Payments: Reimbursement to Vets volunteer driver program.  
• 8035 Conf Training & Travel: Conferences for Mobility Management (Washington DOT Conference) 

$1,076 and Administration RPIBT (Rural Public & Intercity Bus Transportation) $470.  
• 8050 Dues Subscriptions & Fees: ODOT Lic Fee for two new buses $249 
• 8053 IGA Dues & Fees: Two Quarterly payments to Tillamook $2,500 each and $6,667 for our share of  

the Match for the NW Connector Access Project.  
• 8061 Equipment Lease: Budget included 2 leased buses for October 2016 at $5,000 each per month.  

The buses were not needed as we purchased two used buses. 
• 8075 Fuel: Reflects actuals paid in October.  Prices continue below budgeted amounts Unleaded prices 

are about $2.10 and Bio diesel about $1.65  
• 8130 Payroll Processing Fee: Includes October 2016 PR Fees.   

  5



• 8155 Telephone/Internet: Reflects the result of General Fund (GF) having larger share of the CoastCom 
services than budgeted. The GF was budgeted 25% of expenses and October reflects an actual usage of 
30%.  Overall the billing in on budget  with Ride Care being better than budget. 

• 8170 Vehicle Maint & Repairs: Over budget for the month by $3,838, yet under budget YTD  by 
$5,389. The budget is estimated to be about $10,000 per month.        

• 9700 Capital Expenses: Payment for one new bus was budgeted in October 2016. Payment for both 
buses took place in September 2016 and we were reimbursed by ODOT in October. The two new buses 
were received in September 2016. 

• END  
 

Ride Care Fund Profit and Loss  
 
Ride Care’s total Income is 28.29% of total budget.  YTD  revenues of $973,194 are $134,257 less than Budget. 
Which is the result of receiving $105,466 less from CPCCO than budgeted. The 2016 budget assumed continued 
growth of 10.5% for the year. Actuals are showing a decline in membership over the last 6 months (April to Oct 
2016) of 8.13%.  This is the result of the CPCCO reviewing eligibility files and screening members.  It is expected 
that membership will drop by about 10% over the next year. As a result we have prepared a budget supplement 
for the December Board meeting to address this and other issues. YTD reimbursements from OHA and DHS has 
been $30,000 vs budget of $43,000.  Reimbursements have just started for this fiscal year. YTD Interest Income 
of $3,512 was $1,512 better than budgeted partly the result of an increase in the interest rate to .92% from .875% 
in July with an additional rate increase in October 2016 to  1.03% .  YTD Materials & Services of $778,489 are 
$170,521 less than budget and are 25.10% of YTD budget.  This was aided by a 4th quarter settlement of $47,697 
which resulted from the accrual process at year end received in September 2016.  
 
Expense 
 

• 7000 Contract Providers: Providers continue catching up with their billings (Tillamook, Columbia 
County Rider and  K & M )   

• 8045 Drug/Alcohol Background: The result of background checks for 3 Wapato drivers and one for 
Eliot’s transport and  two pre-employment drug and alcohol tests. 

• 8055 Durable Equip/Small Tools: Reflects the purchase of  headsets for Ride Care. 
• 8136 Professional Services:  August and September 2016 Processing of Answering services invoices.  
• 8155 Telephone/Internet Service: Is better than budget the result of RC actuals representing 70% of the 

Coastcom service while budgeted at 75%.  Overall telephone is under budget and YTD include Oct 
prepayment when you include General Fund.    

• END  
    
   

  6



Sunset Empire Transportation
Profit & Loss Budget Performance General Fund

October 2016 

Month 
Actual

Month 
Budget YTD Actual YTD Budget

YTD Budget 
to YTD Actual Annual Budget

YTD Act 
to Budget

YTD Actual % Budget Target:  33.33% Better
Ordinary Income/Expense (Worse)

Income

4000 FARES 28,551.11 18,925.00 124,129.34 108,800.00 15,329.34 268,300.00 46.27%
4090 DONATIONS/COMMISSIONS 674.00 0.00 884.95 150.00 734.95 600.00 147.49%
4100 CONTRACTED SERVICES-IGA 3,082.00 4,200.00 24,639.00 29,689.00 (5,050.00) 180,917.00 13.62%
4200 TAXES 44,939.16 40,000.00 60,078.27 49,000.00 11,078.27 925,000.00 6.49%
4250 TIMBER SALES 0.00 0.00 88,174.59 40,000.00 48,174.59 160,000.00 55.11%
4260 MASS TRANSIT ASSESSMENT 17,864.64 13,750.00 17,864.64 13,750.00 4,114.64 55,000.00 32.48%
4270 RENTAL INCOME 0.00

4271 BILLBOARD LEASE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00%
4272 PARKING SPACES 712.50 760.00 2,850.00 3,040.00 (190.00) 9,120.00 31.25%
4273- Charging Station 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160.00 0.00%
4270 RENTAL INCOME - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 4270 RENTAL INCOME 712.50 760.00 2,850.00 3,040.00 (190.00) 10,480.00 27.19%
4300 INTEREST 201.16 400.00 1,419.95 1,600.00 (180.05) 4,800.00 29.58%
4310 MISC INCOME 792.48 817.48 817.48
5000 GRANTS 141,100.00 70,550.00 141,100.00 70,550.00 70,550.00 1,128,379.00 12.50%
5080 OREGON STF FUNDS 28,436.00 28,346.00 56,872.00 56,692.00 180.00 328,560.00 17.31%

Total Income 266,353.05 176,931.00 518,830.22 373,271.00 145,559.22 3,062,036.00 16.94%

Gross Profit 266,353.05 176,931.00 518,830.22 373,271.00 145,559.22 3,062,036.00 16.94%
Expense

1. PERSONNEL SERVICES

6005 SALARIES & WAGES 88,951.13 95,664.00 366,722.19 387,487.00 20,764.81 1,243,631.00 29.49%
6200 PAYROLL EXPENSES 7,745.21 11,816.00 44,696.99 49,174.00 4,477.01 153,610.00 29.10%
6300 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 27,305.86 24,597.00 90,482.58 98,390.00 7,907.42 295,166.00 30.65%

Total 1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 124,002.20 132,077.00 501,901.76 535,051.00 33,149.24 1,692,407.00 29.66%
2. MATERIALS & SERVICES

7000 RC PROVIDER PAYMENTS 265.10 1,479.00 812.20 5,916.00 5,103.80 17,750.00 4.58%
7030 BUS PASSES 0.00 340.00 0.00 1,360.00 1,360.00 4,080.00 0.00%
8005 AUDIT 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 4,000.00 2,400.00 26,160.00 6.12%
8006  ADS (HR JOB POSTING) 0.00 350.00 290.17 1,400.00 1,109.83 4,200.00 6.91%
8010 BANK FEES 241.79 250.00 775.87 1,000.00 224.13 3,005.00 25.82%
8020 BLDING & GROUNDS MAINT 1,869.94 2,119.00 6,886.28 8,461.00 1,574.72 25,373.00 27.14%
8030 COMP-INFO-TECH SERVICES 1,215.81 2,044.00 6,689.69 6,090.00 (599.69) 26,237.00 25.50%
8035 CONF TRAINING & TRAVEL 1,905.86 1,600.00 3,804.25 9,318.00 5,513.75 37,042.00 10.27%
8045 DRUG/ALCOHOL/BG CHECKS 332.75 267.00 744.36 1,064.00 319.64 3,200.00 23.26%
8050 DUES SUBSCRIPTIONS & FEES 4,027.67 3,600.00 7,130.34 6,350.00 (780.34) 9,280.00 76.84%
8053 IGA - DUES AND FEES 11,667.00 0.00 11,667.00 4,175.00 (7,492.00) 16,700.00 69.86%
8055 DURABLE EQUIP/SMALL TOOLS 0.00 2,070.00 357.48 6,720.00 6,362.52 16,750.00 2.13%
8061 EQUIPMENT LEASE/RENT 426.21 10,458.00 1,970.63 21,836.00 19,865.37 25,500.00 7.73%
8065 EDUCATION/OUTREACH 1,241.37 2,745.00 2,798.82 16,821.00 14,022.18 39,510.00 7.08%
8070 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 72.00 100.00 455.18 200.00 (255.18) 4,000.00 11.38%
8072 Election Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00%
8075 FUEL 10,532.95 19,897.00 29,561.43 79,588.00 50,026.57 238,772.00 12.38%
8080 INSURANCE 1,318.00 11,541.00 10,551.00 25,742.00 15,191.00 56,142.00 18.79%
8090 LEGAL ADS 0.00 0.00 200.00 100.00 (100.00) 800.00 25.00%
8095 LEGAL COUNSEL 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 6,400.00 0.00%
8100 MEETING EXPENSE 16.42 100.00 200.60 500.00 299.40 1,400.00 14.33%
8120 OFFICE SUPPLIES 479.40 1,500.00 4,183.92 5,600.00 1,416.08 15,450.00 27.08%
8130 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 119.00 160.00 527.80 720.00 192.20 2,080.00 25.38%
8135 PRINTING 143.99 2,633.00 675.09 11,483.00 10,807.91 33,950.00 1.99%
8139 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 105.00 2,316.00 441.30 12,069.00 11,627.70 32,850.00 1.34%
8140 SUBGRANT PASS THROUGH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
8150 TAXES/LICENSES/BUS REG FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 330.00 0.00%
8155 TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE 1,883.87 1,775.00 8,758.89 7,100.00 (1,658.89) 21,296.00 41.13%  7

mary
Sticky Note



8160 UNIFORMS 65.80 150.00 493.50 1,124.00 630.50 5,924.00 8.33%
8165 UTILITIES 1,083.00 1,675.00 4,012.89 6,355.00 2,342.11 21,667.00 18.52%
8170 VEHICLE MAINT & REPAIRS 13,837.54 10,000.00 30,611.27 36,000.00 5,388.73 120,200.00 25.47%

Total 2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 52,850.47 80,169.00 136,199.96 283,092.00 146,892.04 835,048.00 16.31%
Total Expense 176,852.67 212,246.00 638,101.72 818,143.00 180,041.28 2,527,455.00 25.25%

Net Ordinary Income 89,500.38 -35,315.00 -119,271.50 -444,872.00 325,600.50 534,581.00 -22.31%
Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

3. OTHER EXPENSES

9610 CLATSOP BANK-PRINCIPAL 5,443.89 5,483.79 21,646.42 21,700.26 53.84 66,421.11 32.59%
9611 CLATSOP BANK-LOAN INT 1,129.61 1,089.71 4,647.58 4,593.74 (53.84) 12,460.89 37.30%

Total 3. OTHER EXPENSES 6,573.50 6,573.50 26,294.00 26,294.00 0.00 78,882.00 33.33%
9600 DEBT SERVICE & INTERES-FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 334.00 0.00%
9625 SDAO FLEXLEASE-PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,000.00 0.00%
9626 SDAO FLEXLEASE-INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,778.00 0.00%
9700 CAPITAL  EXPENSE 0.00 95,000.00 187,931.00 190,000.00 2,069.00 797,000.00 23.58%
9800 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106,104.00 0.00%
9850 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Other Expense 6,573.50 101,573.50 214,225.00 216,294.00 2,069.00 1,029,098.00 20.82%
Net Other Income -6,573.50 -101,573.50 -214,225.00 -216,294.00 2,069.00 -1,029,098.00 20.82%

Net Income 82,926.88 -136,888.50 -333,496.50 -661,166.00 327,669.50 -494,517.00 67.44%

  8



Sunset Empire Transportation
Profit & Loss Budget Performance RideCare

October 2016 

Month 
Actual

Month 
Budget YTD Actual  YTD Budget

YTD Budget 
to YTD 
Actual  Annual Budget

YTD Act 
to Budget

YTD Actual % Budget Target: 33.33% Better
Ordinary Income/Expense (Worse)

Income

4300 INTEREST 968.07 500.00 3,511.58 2,000.00 1,511.58 6,000.00 58.53%
4500 RC PROVIDER SERVICE REIM 232,373.73 279,952.00 969,682.71 1,105,451.00 (135,768.29) 3,434,370.00 28.23%
Other Types of Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Income 233,341.80 280,452.00 973,194.29 1,107,451.00 (134,256.71) 3,440,370.00 28.29%

Gross Profit 233,341.80 280,452.00 973,194.29 1,107,451.00 (134,256.71) 3,440,370.00 28.29%
Expense

1. PERSONNEL SERVICES

6005 SALARIES & WAGES 24,182.28 26,994.66 100,544.28 113,976.08 13,431.80 350,930.63 28.65%
6200 PAYROLL EXPENSES 2,112.85 3,477.29 11,957.84 14,847.80 2,889.96 45,204.75 26.45%
6300 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 6,027.00 7,492.48 19,477.80 33,716.14 14,238.34 97,402.22 20.00%

Total 1. PERSONNEL SERVICES 32,322.13 37,964.43 131,979.92 162,540.02 30,560.10 493,537.60 26.74%
2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 0.00

7000 RC PROVIDER PAYMENTS 199,249.01 226,721.00 792,503.48 895,399.00 102,895.52 2,781,506.00 28.49%
7030 BUS PASSES 610.00 1,500.00 3,097.50 6,000.00 2,902.50 18,000.00 17.21%
7050 DMAP/CCO Annual Adjustment 0.00 0.00 -47,696.76 0.00 47,696.76 140,000.00 -34.07%
8005 AUDIT 0.00 0.00 400.00 340.00 (60.00) 6,540.00 6.12%
8006  ADS (HR JOB POSTING) 0.00 200.00 468.58 700.00 231.42 2,000.00 23.43%
8010 BANK FEES 10.00 14.00 40.00 57.00 17.00 171.00 23.39%
8020 BLDING & GROUNDS MAINT 439.57 683.00 1,552.37 2,730.00 1,177.63 8,190.00 18.95%
8025 BUS PASSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8030 COMP-INFO-TECH SERVICES 173.18 634.00 642.33 2,536.00 1,893.67 7,609.00 8.44%
8035 CONF TRAINING & TRAVEL 0.00 490.00 -185.95 1,580.00 1,765.95 6,788.00 -2.74%
8045 DRUG/ALCOHOL/BG CHECKS 236.25 100.00 770.25 400.00 (370.25) 1,200.00 64.19%
8050 DUES SUBSCRIPTIONS & FEES 39.42 1,000.00 43.64 1,000.00 956.36 2,170.00 2.01%
8055 DURABLE EQUIP/SMALL TOOLS 477.58 1,500.00 6,545.07 7,000.00 454.93 19,700.00 33.22%
8065 EDUCATION/OUTREACH 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 2,400.00 0.00%
8070 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 0.00 100.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 1,800.00 0.00%
8072 Election Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
8080 INSURANCE 0.00 0.00 2,308.25 1,430.00 (878.25) 5,742.00 40.20%
8090 LEGAL ADS 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00 500.00 0.00%
8095 LEGAL COUNSEL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00%
8100 MEETING EXPENSE 0.00 100.00 20.91 400.00 379.09 1,200.00 1.74%
8120 OFFICE SUPPLIES 101.46 337.00 1,205.17 1,548.00 342.83 4,050.00 29.76%
8130 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 29.75 40.00 131.95 180.00 48.05 520.00 25.38%
8135 PRINTING 55.00 250.00 59.37 1,000.00 940.63 3,000.00 1.98%
8139 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 528.00 220.00 975.00 10,220.00 9,245.00 40,000.00 2.44%
8155 TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVIC 2,915.47 3,265.00 13,784.68 13,061.00 (723.68) 39,184.00 35.18%
8165 UTILITIES 524.59 682.00 1,823.65 2,529.00 705.35 8,339.00 21.87%

Total 2. MATERIALS & SERVICES 205,389.28 237,836.00 778,489.49 949,010.00 170,520.51 3,101,809.00 25.10%
Total Expense 237,711.41 275,800.43 910,469.41 1,111,550.02 201,080.61 3,595,346.60 25.32%

Net Ordinary Income -4,369.61 4,651.57 62,724.88 -4,099.02 66,823.90 -154,976.60 140.47%
Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

3. OTHER EXPENSES
9611 CLATSOP BANK-LOAN INT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 3. OTHER EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9600 DEBT SERVICE & INTERES-FEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 106.00 0.00%
9625 SDAO FLEXLEASE-PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00%
9626 SDAO FLEXLEASE-INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,772.00 0.00%
9655 DMAP REPAYMENT AGREEMENT 0.00 0.00 36,343.25 36,343.00 (0.25) 145,373.00 25.00%
9800 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 36,343.25 36,343.00 (0.25) 360,251.00 10.09%
Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 -36,343.25 -36,343.00 (0.25) -360,251.00 10.09%

Net Income -4,369.61 4,651.57 26,381.63 -40,442.02 66,823.65 -515,227.60 105.12%
  9



Sunset Empire Transportation
Balance Sheet  

As of October 31, 2016

ASSETS LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Current Assets Liabilities

Checking/Savings Current Liabilities

1000 SETD GEN FUND BANK ACCTS Accounts Payable

1001 CCB-OPERATING (3943) 190,415.41 2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

1002 CCB-PAYROLL (3950) 2,187.71 2010 SETD GENERAL FUND A/P 11,508.08
1005 CCB-VEHICLE SALES ACCT 2,202.18 2020 RIDECARE FUND A/P 40,132.79
1010 CCB-EMPLOYEE ACCT (3935) 575.00 Total 2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 51,640.87

1015  HRA FISCAL AGENT 1,592.08 Total Accounts Payable 51,640.87
1020 LGIP (4992) 158,452.89 Other Current Liabilities 63,575.53

1030 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 75,323.56 Total Current Liabilities 115,216.40
1000 SETD GEN FUND BANK ACCTS - Other 1,397.02 Long Term Liabilities

Total 1000 SETD GEN FUND BANK ACCTS 432,145.85 2800 INTERCOMPANY DUE TO/FROM

1040 TILLS 300.00 2810 DUE TO RIDECARE 435,063.82
1050 RIDECARE FUND BANK ACCTS 2815 DUE TO/(FROM) SETD G F (435,063.82)

1051 CCB-RC OPERATING (3976) 210,017.37 Total 2800 INTERCOMPANY DUE TO/FROM 0.00
1055 HRA FISCAL AGENT (RC) 507.92 Total Long Term Liabilities 0.00
1056 RC LGIP (3959) 1,110,613.02 Total Liabilities 115,216.40

Total 1050 RIDECARE FUND BANK ACCTS 1,321,138.31 Equity

Total Checking/Savings 1,753,584.16 3000 OPENING BALANCE EQUITY 651,014.34
Accounts Receivable 3100 NWRC PRIOR PERIOD ADJUST (136,476.00)

1200 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 3900 RETAINED EARNINGS 1,508,253.53
1210 SETD A/R Net Income (307,114.87)

1211 SETD A/R 13,010.50 Total Equity 1,715,677.00
Total 1210 SETD A/R 13,010.50 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,830,893.40
1200 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - Other 20.00

Total 1200 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 13,030.50
1250 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLES 36,439.12

Total Accounts Receivable 49,469.62
Other Current Assets 27,839.62

Total Current Assets 1,830,893.40

TOTAL ASSETS 1,830,893.40

  10



Sunset Empire Transportation
Accounts Receivable 

As of October 31, 2016 

Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

CITY OF CANNON BEACH - A/R 3,082.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,082.00
CLATSOP COUNTY TREASURER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36,439.12 36,439.12
CLATSOP CRUISE HOSTS 7,841.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,841.00
DSHS-CHILDRENS ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.00
HULTQUIST,  JUANITA 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ISN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -330.00 -330.00
ODOT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OR DHS - ASTORIA - SSP/0401 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OR TREASURY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
P-ALLSTATE INSURANCE AGENCY 142.50 142.50 0.00 142.50 0.00 427.50
P-ANDI WARREN INSURANCE AGENCY 47.50 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00
P-CELLAR ON 10TH, THE 0.00 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00
P-FARMHOUSE FUNK 0.00 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00
P-H&R Block 142.50 47.50 95.00 0.00 -190.00 95.00
P-HOMESPUN QUILTS 0.00 95.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00
P-HOXIE, RONALD 0.00 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50
P-STEINER, MICHELE 0.00 47.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 47.50
PACIFIC NW WORKS/WORKSOURCE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.00 45.00
RC-PASSES 0.00 1,350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,350.00
RC-SETD PARA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 11,300.50 1,967.50 95.00 142.50 35,964.12 49,469.62

  11



Sunset Empire Transportation
Accounts Payable 

As of October 30, 2016 

General Fund Current 1 - 30 31 - 60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL

ALSCO 65.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65.80
CARD SERVICE CENTER 2,748.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,748.80
COASTAL ENTERPRISES, LLC 0.00 31.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 31.50
COASTAL LOCK -N- KEY, LLC 23.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.00
GRAFS AUTOMOTIVE 378.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 378.00
INDUSTRIAL DIESEL POWER, INC 3,932.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,932.84
LAZERQUICK 55.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 55.00
MAC TOOLS 120.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120.99
MCCALL TIRE CENTER - Warrenton 1,817.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,817.88
MTR WESTERN BUS 1,085.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,085.28
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 305.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 305.33
OFFICE DEPOT 4.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.61
PACIFICSOURCE ADMINISTRATORS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TERRY'S PLUMBING 126.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.00
VERIZON WIRELESS 762.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 762.76
WARRENTON AUTO PARTS 50.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.29

TOTAL General Fund 11,476.58 31.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,508.08

Ride Care
RC-COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER 110.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 110.00
RC-ELLIOTT'S TRANSPORT 3,290.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,290.60
RC-HOT SHOT TRANSPORTATION 1,881.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,881.80
RC-LEE, RYAN 1,579.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,579.58
RC-MEDIX AMBULANCE 3,192.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,192.20
RC-METRO WEST AMBULANCE 1,901.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,901.43
RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 12,605.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,605.75
RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC 13,787.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,787.50
RC-WILCOX & FLEGEL 1,783.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,783.93

TOTAL Ride Care 40,132.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,132.79

Total SETD 51,609.37 31.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 51,640.87

  12



Sunset Empire Transportation
Checks Over $5,000

10/31/2016

Type Num Date Name Original Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check 4046 10/04/2016 RC-HOT SHOT TRANSPORTATION -5,110.31
Bill Pmt -Check 4048 10/04/2016 RC-MEDIX AMBULANCE -9,442.20
Bill Pmt -Check 4051 10/04/2016 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION -20,260.00
Bill Pmt -Check 4052 10/04/2016 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC -13,519.43
Bill Pmt -Check 4057 10/12/2016 RC-K & M MEDIVAN -20,500.47
Bill Pmt -Check 4060 10/12/2016 RC-MEDIX AMBULANCE -5,202.60
Bill Pmt -Check 4065 10/12/2016 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC -14,637.93
Bill Pmt -Check 4070 10/19/2016 RC-K & M MEDIVAN -6,162.09
Bill Pmt -Check 4078 10/19/2016 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC -14,088.59
Bill Pmt -Check 4082 10/23/2016 RC-COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER -5,405.81
Bill Pmt -Check 4085 10/23/2016 RC-MEDIX AMBULANCE -5,954.20
Bill Pmt -Check 4088 10/23/2016 RC-TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION -30,687.50
Bill Pmt -Check 4090 10/23/2016 RC-WAPATO SHORES, INC -13,312.78
Bill Pmt -Check 4091 10/23/2016 RC-WILCOX & FLEGEL -5,372.33
Bill Pmt -Check 16470 10/19/2016 TILLAMOOK COUNTY DISTRICT -11,667.00
Bill Pmt -Check 16473 10/19/2016 WILCOX & FLEGEL -5,549.80
Bill Pmt -Check 16474 10/19/2016 WESTERN BUS SALES, INC. -187,722.00
Liability Check 16497 10/31/2016 SDIS -32,189.34
Check 103116 10/31/2016 CLATSOP COMMUNITY BANK -6,573.50

  13



  14



  15



  16



Date: December 2, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 10.a Call Recording Policy Update 

 

At the October Board meeting, it was suggested by the Board that we develop a call recording 

policy in relation to recording calls at RideCare.  I have reached out to the other public 

brokerages to see if they have a policy on call recording.  I have received one example and 

hopefully will receive a couple of more so that I can tailor them to fit our needs in our operating 

policies. 

  17



Date: December 2, 2016 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 11.a 

 

Ty Williams with the Oregon Department of Forestry will be here to make a presentation on the 

current Oregon Forest Management Act.  He will be available to answer any questions you may 

have on current practices.  It is important to note that he will not be able to answer questions in 

regards to Agenda Item 11.b due to the litigation that has been filed.  

  18



 
 

Astoria District – State Forests Overview 

Land Ownership 
Astoria District is comprised of approximately 137,000 acres of state forest lands. About 98.5 percent of these lands are Board 
of Forestry (BOF) lands, with the remainder being Common School (CSL) lands.  A total of 154,000 acres of State Forests are 
located in Clatsop County.   

State forest lands are interspersed among other forest lands throughout the county, in ownership blocks ranging from several 
hundred to over 50,000 acres. Other forest lands in the county are predominantly held by large private timber companies: 
GreenWood Resources, Inc., Hampton Tree Farms, Weyerhaeuser Co., Matoaka & PH Timber (Managed by Green Crowe), 
Port Blakely Tree Farms and Stimson Lumber Company. Individuals and families (non-industrial private landowners) hold a 
small percentage of the forest lands. 

 
Environmental  
Management of the Clatsop State Forest provides for properly functioning aquatic habitats for salmonids, and other native fish 
and aquatic life; habitats for native wildlife; productive soil, and clean air and water. 
 
Economic 
Over the last 10 years annual revenues distributed to Clatsop County and local taxing districts from state forest timber sales have 
averaged $15.8 million dollars. Clatsop County has averaged the largest share of revenue of all counties at approximately 33% of 
the total distribution.  There are 25 different taxing districts that receive portions of this revenue which include seven different 
rural fire departments, Clatsop Care Center, Clatsop College, and local school districts, just to name a few.  
 
Currently we have 28 timber sales under contract with an estimated net value of $53 million dollars. The total number of active 
sales on the Clatsop State Forest is 10 with an average of 10 direct jobs with each sale for a total of 100 people directly 
employed as a result. 
 
Timber sale markets are dominated mainly by “saw-timber” in Warrenton, Mist, Tillamook, Forest Grove, Willamina, Kalama, 
and Molalla.  Some timber is transported to Rainer and then shipped by rail to southern Oregon.  Other markets include Doug-
fir and hemlock peeler logs to Elma, WA, hardwoods to Tillamook, Longview, and Chehalis, and hardwood pulp to Warrenton 
and Clatskanie. 

Social   
Recreation is diverse on the Clatsop State Forest, with dispersed use throughout the district.  Activities include horseback 
riding, hiking, mountain biking, off-highway vehicle (OHV) riding, family camping, group camping, hunting, target shooting, 
fishing, nature study, and sightseeing.  During FY16 we had 17,083 users at our five campgrounds which generated $61,449 in 
use fees. 

The Clatsop State Forest has five designated campgrounds:  Henry Rierson Spruce Run Campground and Beaver Eddy 
Campground in the Quartz Basin, Gnat Creek Campground in the Davis Basin, Northrup Creek Horse Camp in the Northrup 
Basin, and Viewpoint OHV Campground in the Plympton Basin.  A day use area at Lost Lake is also available.   

 
There are 20 miles of non-motorized trail in the Clatsop State Forest including the Soapstone Lake hiking trail, Bloom Lake 
hiking trail, Spruce Run Creek hiking trail, Northrup Creek equestrian trail, Gnat Creek hiking trail, Lost Lake hiking trail, and 
the Astoria District Demonstration Forest trail.   
 
Additionally there are twenty-five miles of designated off-highway vehicle (OHV) trails located within the Nicolai Mountain 
Off-Highway Vehicle Area. Local OHV user groups continue to be important collaborators in the success of this motorized 
riding area. 

  19



  20



  21



  22



  23



  24



  25



  26



  27



  28



  29



  30



  31



  32



  33



  34



  35



  36



  37



  38



  39



  40



  41



  42



  43



  44



Executive Director Report 
December 2016 Board Meeting Report 
Jeff Hazen 
 
-SDIS Safety and Security Grant 
Each year, Special Districts Insurance Services solicits grant applications from its members 
relating to safety and security.  This year’s grant focus is on mitigating exposure to 
musculoskeletal injuries.  The safety committee came up with a few ideas and the one that won 
out was suggested by Jennifer.  It is to purchase a full seat cushion with lumbar support for each 
bus driver.  A majority of our buses are on the road seven days a week, 12-16 hours a day.  The 
driver seats begin to break down quickly.  The seats lose their cushion and full support for the 
driver.  Adding a full seat cushion with lumbar support that is designed to add what was lost in 
the breakdown of the seat, will help correct a driver’s sitting position.  The full cushion will 
maintain the "s" curve in the spine to help prevent back pain, sciatica, headaches and road 
fatigue.  It will also absorb the road vibration before it reaches the driver.  It will add support 
under the hips and behind the lumbar area of the back.  
 
Many of our drivers suffer from road fatigue, body aches, back and leg pains and headaches by 
the end of the shift.  They are slow getting out of the bus at the end of the day due to these issues.  
Even with scheduled lunches and frequent breaks in a shift, adding a high-quality seat cushion 
that is designed for worn out bus seats will help our hard-working drivers.  Here is the link to see 
what we are proposing to purchase with the grant, http://www.travelseatcushion.com/Sacro-
Ease-TriMet-Bus-and-Truck-Seat-Support-p/se-trimet.htm 
 
-Adopt-a-family 
As we have done in the past, we are adopting a family for Christmas this year.  We are adopting 
a south county family through the Seaside Rotary Club’s Wishing Tree program.  We were 
recognized at the Rotary Club meeting this week as the first organization to sign up for a family 
this year and received a rousing round of applause.  The last couple of years we have adopted a 
family in north county and I felt it was important to reach out to south county this year.  We will 
continue to rotate north/south every year so we are being equitable throughout our service area.  
More information will be provided at the Holiday Party this weekend. 
 
-Rosa Parks Day 
Speaking of a rousing round of applause, we received another one at Rotary this week when it 
was announced that we were honoring the actions of Rosa Parks on December 1st, 1955 by 
reserving a seat at the front of all buses running on fixed route that day.  KAST also had it on the 
news and on their Facebook page.  There were a few positive comments on their post on 
Facebook. 
 
 
 
 

  45

http://www.travelseatcushion.com/Sacro-Ease-TriMet-Bus-and-Truck-Seat-Support-p/se-trimet.htm
http://www.travelseatcushion.com/Sacro-Ease-TriMet-Bus-and-Truck-Seat-Support-p/se-trimet.htm


-IGA with Columbia County 
Columbia County has not responded to me on the intergovernmental agreement for the feasibility 
study by the time the Board pack is going out.  They had a few comments on the IGA that I 
answered and their counsel has not responded yet with their approval. 
 
-Save the Dates 
January 5th Board Retreat for goal setting 
January 6th SDAO Legislative Day in Salem 
February 9-12 SDAO Annual Conference in Portland 
October 1-4 Oregon Public Transportation Conference in Pendleton 
 
Weekly Reports: 
11/28/16 
Good morning, short week last week so this report will be fairly brief.  We finalized our 
insurance renewals for next year.  These renewals include our coverage for; Social Engineering 
Fraud (AKA Business E-Mail Compromise), Cyber Crime, Vehicles, Properties, Liability and 
Crime.  I finalized an IGA with Columbia County for the feasibility study we will be embarking 
on.  The funding agreement with ODOT will be on the Board’s agenda next week for approval.  I 
completed an eFare survey for ODOT dealing with the Trimet eFare study that we are a part of.  
This was OPTIS week where we submitted our periodic report and then requested 
reimbursement from the various grant agreements that we have with ODOT.  OPTIS stands for 
Oregon Public Transit Information System.  I attended a webinar put on by CTAA about some of 
the programs that they offer.  With the loss of our attorney, I began writing up an RFQ that will 
be going out to some local firms and to a couple that were provided to me by SDAO.  For the 
IGA that I wrote with Columbia County, I used one of the County Attorneys, Heather Reynolds 
to review it. 
 
Thursday, December 1st, we will be honoring Rosa Parks on our fixed route buses.  It was on 
this date in 1955 that she refused to give up her seat at the front of the bus as ordered to by the 
bus driver.  All of our buses will have a front seat reserved for her with an informational sign 
marking this important date in the civil rights movement and the impact it had on public transit 
and the country. 
 
 
11/22/16 
Good morning, I hope all is well with each of you.  This weekly report covers the last two weeks.  
I was in the hospital last week with a nasty infection in my foot so I wasn’t here all week.  The 
Team did a great job keeping things going in my absence!   
 
Several of us (Mary, Scott, John, Tami, Al, Jennifer, and I) attended the Risk Management 
training session put on by SDAO/SDIS in Seaside.  A lot of great information was given out and 
it was worthwhile to have several of us in attendance.  I spent time putting together the 
presentation that I gave at the NWACT (Northwest Area Commission on Transportation).  Karyn 

  46



Crisswell, RTC (Regional Transit Coordinator for Region 1 and Jamey Dempster, our RTC put 
together a Powerpoint presentation and handout that will be used at the legislature next year 
helping legislators understand how transit is funded.  I was able to edit them down to be specific 
to our area.  There were a lot of good questions and people at the NWACT got a better idea 
about the different funding sources we have.  I have attached them to this email.  We received 
some suggestions on things to include in the presentation and handout that will be going to the 
legislature and I have passed those suggestions onto Karyn and Jamey for them to work into 
them.  I participated in a conference call with the engineers at mindSHIFT in preparation for the 
onboarding of our IT services.  They are now working with John in preparation for the new 
service.   
 
Due to being in the hospital last week, I had to miss meetings every day.  PTAC was held on 
Monday and there was discussion held on the funding structure and funding cuts for next 
biennium.  I had several questions that I emailed from my bed and am waiting for a written 
response to them.  Tuesday was supposed to be a meeting with Tillamook County 
Transportation, City of Manzanita, and City of Cannon Beach to further discuss the Intercity 
Enhancement Plan.  Part of this plan is to look out our connections with Tillamook and how to 
enhance the service but possibly adding another connection and also to have one transfer point 
(Cannon Beach)only.  This would mean that we would no longer go to Manzanita.  I liken it to 
what we did with Columbia County by making our connection in one town, Rainier rather that 
sometimes Clatskanie and sometimes Westport.  Wednesday I missed the monthly driver’s 
meeting so I can’t report out on that yet.  I do know that our VALIC rep and AFLAC rep were 
here to talk with employees about retirement and disability.  Thursday, I missed the NWOTA 
meeting and was unable to call in.  They met with Trillium to begin the process of the new 
website.  They are scheduling part 2 of that meeting and it will be held in the near future.  On 
Friday a training was held in Portland for grant solicitation and procurement.  I missed going to 
that but both Al and Scott attended.  Al brought me back the power point for the grant program 
and Karen sent me the procurement one.  There is a webinar scheduled for next week and I 
should be able to attend that. 
 
Lastly, Jeanyse Snow informed us that due to her husband’s serious health condition, they are 
closing their practice so she will no longer be providing our legal services.  She did recommend 
both Heather Reynolds and Blair Henningsgaard because of their municipal background.  I will 
be reaching out to them and contacting SDAO for recommendations as well. 
 
 
 
10/31/16 
Today’s update will be rather short since we had a Board meeting last week.  I spent some time 
starting to research transit fleet maintenance software.  Currently, we have a paper driven system 
and we need to take a look at what software is out there and what kind of efficiencies we will 
gain.  I found a couple of companies that I was interested in and have started communicating 
with them to learn more about what they offer.  I received the 2017-19 ODOT Advance Grant 

  47



Notice with estimated allocations listed.  They have made some changes this biennium and I’m 
sure that we will be having some discussion around the funding at our next PTAC meeting in 
November.  I have an executive committee meeting for PTAC tomorrow and I will be bringing it 
up there since I have started to get feedback from some of the other rural providers on the west 
side of the State.   
 
Following up with last week’s Board meeting, I wanted to let you know that Tami is working on 
getting each of you set up with sign in credentials for SDAO so you can go online for some of 
their training.  As a final reminder, I hope that those of you who haven’t filled out the Doodle 
Poll yet, can go in this week and complete it so I can get a date set with the facilitators.  Let me 
know if you need the link to the poll resent to you. 
 
10/24/16 
Last week, I reviewed and okayed the RFQ for the purchase of the 2 STF funded paratransit 
vans.  ODOT gave their ok on the RFQ so it has been sent out to the vendors. I would anticipate 
delivery of the vehicles in January or February.  We had our quarterly S & D meeting on 
Tuesday.  Topics included a travel training update, an STF process update, and discussion on 
filling the last vacancy on the committee.  I attended the area manager’s meeting on Tuesday.  
This is monthly opportunity for the city managers, the county manager, and a couple of special 
district managers to get together informally and report out what is going on in our respective 
agencies.  Since it was Board meeting packet assembly week, I spent time on finalizing the 
agenda along with prepping all of the material for the meeting.  Mary and I have streamlined our 
packet process and it has cut down time dramatically.  Our RideCare advisory committee 
meeting was held on Friday.  I updated the group on where we are at with the OBSS software 
process.  I also went off topic and shared our last quarter ridership increases on our fixed routes.  
I also sat in on a webinar on Friday about Reimanging Transportation.  Unfortunately, this one 
was focused on urban transportation and they did not address my questions on applicability to 
rural areas that I submitted on the chat screen and I was disappointed they didn’t answer them 
via email after the webinar was over.  Guess not every webinar will be a good one…….. 

  48



Rider Report 
December Board Meeting Report 
John Layton 
 
“The Bus” (Fixed Route) Highlights: 

• 23,747 people used fixed routes in October for an average of 766 riders per day.  
• 36.5% increase in average passengers who rode fixed routes per day from last October 

(561.2 to 766) 
• 13.7 people per hour, on average, got on any fixed route at any time that the bus runs in 

October.  22.3% increase (11.2 to 13.7) from last October.  
• 17.6% increase in the ratio of elderly/disabled riders from last October (21.2% to 

24.9%) 
 
RideAssist Highlights: 
 

• 812 rides were provided by RideAssist in October for an average of 33.8 rides per day. 
• 16.7% increase in average RideAssist passengers per day from last October (29 to 33.8) 
• 2.5% increase in all ADA Paratransit rides from last October (528 to 541) 

 
Clatsop Care Center Health District Highlights: 
 

• 0 people were provided by SETD in October for an average of 0 riders per day. 
 
System Highlights: 
 

• 24,559 people used Sunset Empire Transportation in October for an average of 792.2 
riders per day. 

• 37% increase in all average passengers per day from last October (578.2 to 792.2) 

  49



Rider Report

December Board Meeting Report

John Layton

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Oct-15

SETD Rides

Shuttles

Paratransit

Route 10

Route 11

Route 12

Route 15

Route 21

Route 101

Columbia

Pacific

Street Car

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

120.0%

Rider Breakdown by Route

Senior

Disabled

Passes

Student

Job Corp

Veterans

  50



  51



Operations  
December Board Meeting Report 
Scott Earls          

          

1. Being the Operations report we take great pride in the ridership numbers that are being 
produced. To already be over 200,000 riders with 2 months to go in the year is 
awesome. 

2. We sent out and received back the Bid request for the 2 Para Transit Vans and should 
have a decision soon. Our choice then goes to the State for approval after that the 
vehicles are ordered. We are hoping for delivery end of Jan maybe sometime in Feb. 

3. A number of us attended a training session in Nov. for Risk Management, I think we 
always learn things in these seminars or at least confirm what we already knew. 

4. I sat in on a Webinar from Q’Straints about rear facing securement and a new system 
they call Quantum. Rear facing securement is not new Steve, Liz and I attended a 
training in Eugene back in 2010 and at that time Lane Transit had the first of this type 
of securement. It works on the assumption that most accidents in buses will be from 
the front and the riders would be thrown forward, if a mobility device is already 
secured against a padded back stop the energy from the impact would be absorbed. 
Today’s version takes it a step forward and has arms that come down alongside the 
mobility device and squeeze inward to hold it in place. In most cases it would require 
no assistance from the driver and they could be secured in as little as 25 seconds. This 
was interesting and also very expensive. 

5. Attended a Grant class with Al in Nov. 
6. Canned Food drive is well underway. Delivery date for the Food Basket Program is 

Dec.9th so if you are interested in knowing how we did ask me at the Dec. Board 
meeting 

7. Thanks everyone that organized the company holiday party. Because of scheduling 
conflicts I have not attended the last couple of parties but I am planning on taking part 
in this one. 

8. We are Training drivers for the 2 new Para Transit positions that will be opening soon. 
As well as training new drivers for Fixed route.              

 

 

 

 

  52



RIDE ASSIST  
October/November 2016 Report 
Jennifer Geisler 
 
• In October RideAssist had 812 rides for an average of 33.8 rides per day. 

There was a 16.7% increase in all RideAssist rides from October 2015.  
We provided 161 RideCare rides for October.  For November, we have had 704 rides for 
RideAssist, 445 rides for ADA and 162 for RideCare and 97 escorts for these clients. 
  

• Dial-A-Ride had 0 rides in the month of October and November.  
 

• We have received eleven new ADA Paratransit application.  Seven have used the service within 
their first month. 

 
• The Paratransit drivers sold three orange ticket books and 18 green ticket books for a total of 

$514 for October.  For November, they have sold two orange books and 7 green books for a 
total of $222.  Our ADA clients like the convenience of buying tickets from our drivers. 

 
• There were 133 veteran rides in October and 120 in November. 

 
• There were 0 ride denials for ADA Paratransit. 

 
• I attended the Senior & Disabled meeting on October 18th, the Risk Management training in 

Seaside on November 9th and the driver meeting held in Warrenton on November 16th.  
 

• I led Paratransit driver meetings both on October 17th and November 21st.  
 

 
Paratransit Fares Collected for October 2016 
• Paratransit Fares (cash):  $841 
• Tickets Collected:   $559  
• Medicaid Collected:  $2839 
• Ticket books sold:   $514    

 
Paratransit Fares Collected for November 2016 (as of 11/28/2016) 
• Paratransit Fares (cash):  $684 
• Tickets collected:   $728 
• Medicaid Collected:  not yet billed 
• Ticket books sold:   $222 
 
 
 

  53



Marketing and Outreach 
December 2016 Board Meeting Report  
Mary Parker 
 
I have been continuing to work on outreach for the Lower Columbia Connector:  

• An ad was placed in the Daily Astorian last month and another will be placed in 
December. 

• An ad will be placed in the St. Helens paper in December 
• Radio ads are scheduled in December for two local radio stations 
• Radio ads are scheduled in December for radio stations in Longview and St. Helens 

I have been working on production of public notifications and press releases for the Canned 
Food Drive, Holiday Closures and Rosa Parks Day. 

I am working on the exterior design for the 2 new vans with Tim Gillespie. 

I gave a Public Transportation and Mobility presentation to the Retired Teachers Association in 
November. It was so much fun!!! They were so thankful and had many questions. We are 
planning a “Ride the Bus to Lunch” trip in the near future.  

I attended the Mobility Management and Travel Training Peer-to-Peer Group at Ride Connection 
in Portland. Very educational to hear the history of Ride Connection and how they have 
established their outreach plan and their community partners.  

Thank you for another great year of your support in our efforts to constantly be improving the 
services we provide. Looking forward to greater things!   

Wishing you all Happy Holidays! 

 

    

 

 

   

 

  54



Mobility Management 
December 2016 Board Meeting Report  
Shana Verley 
 
*Training and Research  
The webinars I attended these months are the following: 

How transit technology can solve 3 problems facing your rural transit agency, Providing Accessible 
Transportation Services and Partnerships with Faith-based & Community Organizations to Support 
Inclusive Coordinated Transportation & Mobility Management.  

 

*Program Development 
The Veterans Enhanced Transportation Program is running wonderfully. We brought on a new 
volunteer driver so now we have 6 volunteer drivers and 32 veterans using the transportation. 
  
 
*Outreach 
These months I have been travel training with a young man from Astoria High School who is 
very excited that he now can navigate our bus system and have more “freedom”. I attended a 
Mobility Management and Travel Training Peer-to-Peer group from the CTANW (Community 
Transportation Association of the Northwest) held at Ride Connection in Portland. I also gave a 
Travel Training presentation at the Bob Chisholm Center during the senior lunch, we had 18 
participants. I attended the ISN (Integrated Services Network) Support Services Brokerage and 
Catholic Community Services Policy Oversight Council meeting which was an open discussion 
on the transportation needs for people with disabilities.  
 

  55



 
Information Technology Report 
December 2016 Board Meeting  
John Layton 
 
It has been a slow month in IT this month.  Of note for the month: 
 

• The new computer company – mindSHIFT – started their process to take over the support of our IT 
work.  I have been answering their questions and they sent two people down to take inventory of our 
system and add remote software to our computers and servers.    

• RideCare’s new computer is up and running. 
• Jason’s experiment with the new phone recording didn’t go well.  We will continue to find a way to 

record phone calls at RideCare 
• We still need to purchase new computers for Scott, Shana and Shasia.  We are waiting for the local tax 

funds to come in.  

  56



Human Resource Report 
December Board Meeting Report 
Tami Carlson 

OCTOBER 
 

• “Employee of the Quarter” for July–Aug–Sept 2016 goes to Debbie Bauer.  Debbie has been 
with SETD since June 2003.  She started as a summer driver and then in 2008 became a full-
time fixed route driver.  In May of last year Debbie took a position at the TC as a Customer 
Service Rep. 

 
• The RideCare recruiting process resulted in the hiring of 3 new Customer Service Reps.  

Welcome Stephanie Rodriguez, Carolyn Goodrich and Kim Cooper.  RideCare had 3 staff 
members unexpectedly leave the Team last month. 

 
• A new position “Operational Lead” for RideCare was posted in-house.  Congratulations to 

Donna Buganan who started as a CSR/Dispatcher in January of this year.  The Operational 
Lead reports to the RC Manager and will actively support the operational goals, policies and 
procedures of the Medicaid brokerage.  Provides general supervision to staff and assistance 
to the manager.   

 
• October 13th met with Regence Rep Chet Weichman.  Chet gave an update on our health 

insurance benefits and future costs for 2017.  He doesn’t anticipate a higher than usual rate 
increase. 

 
• October 14th met with Valic Rep Terry Helland.  Terry set-up an appointment to visit at our 

next driver’s meeting in November.  All employees will have a chance to meet with him if 
needed. 

 
• October 20th met with SETD Board’s Subcommittee.  The subcommittee discussed 

procedures for the upcoming Executive Director’s Evaluation.  Subcommittee members are 
Chair Kathy Kleczek, Vice Chair Paul Lewicki and Secretary Treasurer Carol Gearin.   

 
• October 25th attended an HR Webinar presented by Jaime Lizotte, HR Solutions Manager of 

ComplyRight on tax season deadlines and the latest government changes affecting mandatory 
forms.        

 
• Submitted Federal and State Quarterly Payroll Reports. 

 
• Other projects – Set-up mandatory substance abuse training for safety sensitive employees 

through Nation Rural Transit Assistance Program (RTAP); online SafePersonnel trainings. 

  57



NOVEMBER 
 

•  November 8th attended the SETD Safety Committee meeting.  We discussed applying for the 
2017 SDIS Safety Grant to purchase adjustable lumbar seat cushions for all the buses.  This 
is a much-needed item for all drivers.  182 Days Safe!  

       
• November 9th attended a Risk Management training presented by SDAO/SDIS in Seaside.  

Very informative.  The speakers stressed the importance of internal controls for handling 
employee complaints, misconduct, improving work performance and sexual harassment.  
Speakers also touched on the aging workforce, generation gaps and how to plan for employee 
retirement transitions. 

 
• November 10th met with SETD Board’s Subcommittee.  Continued discussion on procedures 

for the Executive Director’s Evaluation.  Assisted committee with duties as per their request. 
 

• November 16th at the SETD mandatory driver’s meetings we had our employee’s quarterly 
birthday celebration by having a chili dog day.  The Aflac and Valic Reps gave presentations 
at both meetings and assisted employees with their needs for the new plan year. 

 
• November 22nd via phone conference spoke with Clatsop County Commissioner Lianne 

Thompson.  The Board’s Subcommittee suggested I reach out to Lianne to gather 
information that could potentially assist with the development of a Policy and Procedures for 
the Executive Director’s Evaluation.  This was a great experience. 

 
• Other projects – Started the 2017 renewal process for SETD’s HRA and FSA employee 

benefit plans; completed the property and cyber insurance renewal for 2017 with Brown & 
Brown NW; Adopt-a-Family for Christmas in the works. 

 

 
 
        

 

  58



Ride Care Report 
December 2016 Board Meeting  
Jason Jones 
 

• Ride Care has hired and trained three (3) new CSRs for our call Team.  We are happy to 
welcome Stephanie, Carolyn and Kim and watch them grow in the coming months with 
knowledge of how to help NEMT members.  We are excited that they are in place and 
ready for the challenges that are ahead.   

• Donna accepted the added responsibilities of the Ride Care Operational Lead and has 
been training in her position now for roughly 3 weeks.  Donna is a very capable 
individual who knows how to communicate and knows how resolve common issues.  She 
will be backing up the manager while he is on vacation in November.   

• There was no CAP meeting this month.     

• Ride Care has been scheduling on site reviews of our sub-contractors in the month of 
October and have 2 more scheduled in November.    

  59


	1 December 8, 2016 Board Agenda  - Copy
	5. OCTOBER 2016 DRAFT BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	7. A SETD Exceptions & Inform Report  Oct  2016
	7. B QB GF Oct 2016 P&L
	Sheet3

	7. C QB RC Oct 2016 P&L
	Sheet3

	7. D QB Oct 2016 BS
	Sheet3

	7. E QB Oct 2016 AR
	Sheet3

	7. F QB Oct 2016 AP
	Sheet3

	7. G QB Checks Over $5000 Oct 2016
	Sheet3

	7. H Card Service Oct 2016
	10.a Call Recording Policy Update
	11.a ODF Presentation
	11.a (1)State Forests  Overview December2016
	Land Ownership
	Social

	11.b County of Linn v. State of Oregon
	11.c Whistleblower Policy
	11.d ODOT Agreement 31796 Consolidation Study
	13.a Executive Director Report 12-1-16
	14.a October 2016 Rider Report
	14.b Monthly Op Chart October 2016
	14.c Ops Report Nov. Dec. 16docx
	14.d RIDE ASSIST NOV REPORT
	14.e Marketing Report
	14.f MM monthly report Oct-Nov 2016
	14.g October-November 2016 IT Report
	14.h HR Report Oct-Nov 2016
	14.i RideCare Report



